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U.S. Department of Justice�MEMORANDUM�TO: Frederick D. Hess, Director�Office or Enforcement Operations�Criminal Division���FROM: John C. Keeney�Acting Assistant Attorney General�Crimina1 Division���SUBJECT: Authorization for Interception Order Application����This is with regard to your recommendation that I, an appropriately�designated official of the Criminal Division, authorize an application to a�federal judge of competent jurisdiction for an order under Title l8, United�States Code, section 2518, authorizing the interception of wire�communications for a thirty (30) day period, to and from the telephones�bearing the numbers (216) 788-8165 and (216) 788-3944, subscribed to by�Thomas J. Purucker, and located at 768 Canterbury Lane, Boardman, Ohio; to�and from the telephones bearing the numbers (216) 744-3733, subscribed to by�Joseph Serrecchio, d/b/a Mr. A's Eatery, and located at 769 N. Garland�Avenue, Youngstown, Ohio, and (2l6) 755-8355, subscribed to by Sam S. Vona,�Jr., and located at 414 Creed, Struthers, Ohio; and, oral communications�occurring within the kitchen and office areas of Mr. A's Eatery, located at�769 N. Garland Avenue, Youngstown, Ohio, in connection with an investigation�into possible violation of Title 18, United States Code, section 1955, by�Lenine Strollo, Dante Strollo, Joseph Serrecchio, Michael Serrecchio,�Lawrence P. Garono, Thomas J. Purucker, Sam S. Vona, Jr., Thomas Vigarino,�Robert L. Hughes, and others as yet unknown. ����By virtue of the authority vested in the Attorney General of the United�States by Section 2516 of Title 18, United States Code, the Attorney General�has by order Number 1950-95, dated February 13, 1995, designated specific�officials in the criminal Division to authorize applications for court orders�authorizing the interception of wire or oral communications. As a duly�designated official in the criminal Division, this power is exercisable by�me. ����WHEREFORE, acting under this delegated power, I hereby authorize the�above-described application to be made by any investigative or law�enforcement officer of the United States as defined in Section 2510C7) of�Title l8, United States Code.����The authorization given is intended to apply not only to the target�telephone numbers listed above, but to any changed telephone numbers�subsequently assigned to the same cables, pairs and binding posts utilized by�the target landline phones within the thirty (30) day period. The�authorization is also intended to apply to background conversations�intercepted in the vicinity of the target telephones while the telephones are�off the hook or otherwise in use.����The application should include a request that the order providing for the�interception specifically authorize surreptitious entry for the purpose of�installing, maintaining, and removing any electronic interception devices to�be utilized in accomplishing the oral interception. ����(signed)���John C. Keeney�Acting Assistant Attorney General�Criminal Division���(11-17-95)��_____________________________________________
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TO: Maureen H. Killion, Senior Associate Director�Office of Enforcement Operations�Criminal Division����FROM: . John C. Keeney�Acting Assistant Attorney General�Criminal Division����SUBJECT: Authorization for Interception Order Application����This is with regard to your recommendation that I, an appropriately�designated official of the Criminal Division, authorize an application to a�federal judge of competent jurisdiction for an order under Title 18, United�$tates Code, Section 2518, authorizing the Continued interception of wire�communications for a thirty (30) day period, to and from the cellular�telephone bearing the number (330) 719-8900, subscribed to by John Chicase,�2703 Mahoning Avenue, Suite 107, Youngstown, Ohio; and to and from the�landline telephones bearing the numbers (330) 533-99l~ and (330) 533-6E671�Subscribed to by Antoinette Russo, and located at 7000 Leffingwell Road,�Canfield, Ohio, in connection with an investigation into possible violation�of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 894, 1341, 1343, 1511, 1951, 1935,�and 1962, by Lenine Strollo, Dante Strollo, Dominic Strollo, Lawrence P.�Garono, Michael Serrecchio, Robert Poghen, Bernard Altshuler, Raymond Hertz,�George Malizia, John LNU, Charles O'Nesti, George Alexander, Robert Moosally,�Charles Xenakis, John Chicase, Bobby Ingram, Thomas O'Nesti, Patrick�Armstrong, Sam Sirna, Leo Connelly, Pete Pacalo, William Fergus, and others�as yet unknown.����By virtue of the authority vested in the Attorney General of the United�States by Section 2516 of Title 18, United States Code, the Attorney General�has by Order Number 1950-95, dated February 13, 1995, designated specific�officials in the Criminal Division to authorize applications for court orders�authorizing the interception of wire or oral communications. As a duly�designated official in the Criminal Division, this power is exercisable by�me. WHEREFORE, acting under this delegated power, I hereby authorize the�above-described application to be made by any investigative or law�enforcement officer of the United States as defined in Section 2S10(7) of�Title 19, United States Code.����The authorization given is intended to apply not only to the target�telephone numbers listed above1 but to any changed telephone number, or any�other telephone number used by or assigned to the instrument bearing the same�electronic serial number utilized by the target cellular telephone within the�thirty (30) day period, and to any changed telephone numbers subsequently�assigned to the same cables, pairs and binding posts utilized by the target�landline telephones within the thirty (30) day period. The authorization is�also intended to apply to background conversations intercepted in the�vicinity of the target telephones while the telephones are off the hook or�otherwise in use. ����John C. Keeney�Acting Assistant Attorney General�Criminal Division����AUG. 21, 1996�
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III. USE OF OTHER INVESTIGATIVE TECHNIOUES����83. From my experience and the experience of other Special Agents of the FBI�with whom I have conferred in the investigation of criminal offenses, the�Affiant knows that certain established investigative techniques are employed�in the investigation of organized crime and racketeering cases which often�involve many participants and levels of participation. These techniques�include the development of credible witnesses who can testify regarding the�criminal offenses1 physical surveillances, execution of search warrants in an�effort- to seize evidence of criminality, use of pen registers and traps and�traces, consensually recorded conversations through the use of cooperative�witnesses and informants, interviewing and identifying witnesses, reviewing�official records and documents, subpoenaing of records relating to the�criminal offense, compelling testimony from reluctant witnesses, and the use�of undercover agents to infiltrate the illegal operation.����84. All of these techniques, as described more fully herein, either have�been tried, and have failed to reveal the full nature and extent of the�criminal activities, or these techniques appear unlikely to succeed if tried�and would, in all likelihood, compromise the investigation.����85. Your Affiant has given consideration to the use of an undercover agent�to attempt to obtain incriminating evidence against the participants in this�investigation. However, your Affiant believes this technique would be limited�in value or otherwise unsuccessful because the principals and associates of�the principals in this investigation are a close knit group of long-standing�association who have personally known each other for many years or have been�personally introduced and sponsored by another individual within the group. A�group of this nature would therefore not readily accept an outsider as an�active participant in the group's criminal activities. Michael Sabella, who�is a life long resident of the area, can move freely about with the�principals but is not knowledgeable of all the illegal conversations and�activities occurring. Even if an undercover agent could successfully be�accepted, it is unlikely the agent would be able to obtain firsthand evidence�against all the participants in or all of the criminal violations conducted�by the RICO enterprise.����86. Based on your Affiant's experience and the experience of other Special�Agents of the FBI, it is generally concluded that interviews are not�successful regarding this type of activity and your Af f iant believes they�would not be successful in this investigation, because the only persons�knowledgeable about the full contents of the conversations or transactions�are the parties who are the direct participants and who are also themselves�the subjects. On March 5, 1996 and March 25, 1996, Agents interviewed Stewart�Mandel and Dominic Strollo; Affiant believes that both individuals provided�false information based on information obtained from the interception of wire�communications over the subject telephones.����87. The Affiant knows from his experience and the experience of other�Special Agents of the FBI that compelling testimony from immunized witnesses�involved in criminal activity is often unsuccessful in developing evidence�sufficient to prosecute a large scale. conspiracy such as described herein.�The only individuals who can provide testimony sufficient to prosecute this�conspiracy are the targets of this investigation who, the Affiant believes,�should not be granted immunity from their criminal activity. When compelled�testimony is provided concerning meetings and telephone conversations among�the criminal participants, it is often difficult or impossible to corroborate�such testimony through independent investigation. Finally, the Affiant knows�that individuals involved in criminal activities, because of fear and/or�loyalty, often refuse to testify even under a grant of immunity. The Affiant�views this technique as one of last resort, to be used only after obtaining�inculpatory statements of all the principals which can be used to corroborate�such testimony.����88. During this investigation, a small number of those interviewed provided�limited information about discreet portions of the illegal activities of the�enterprise. The nature and scope of the information provided was narrow and�insufficient to prosecute the targets for any offense. No other witnesses,�except for Michael Sabella who is only knowledgeable of a portion of the�subject violations, are available who are able or willing to testify. The�Affiant knows of no single individual other than the principals themselves�who could provide information revealing the total scope of the criminal�activities conducted by this RICO enterprise.����89. Spot checks and surveillances conducted at locations utilized by the�subjects have been useful to some extent in placing the subjects at such�locations, but they have failed to reveal the identity of all the principals�or criminal activities of this RICO enterprise, have failed to assist in the�development of witnesses, and have failed to secure sufficient evidence to�present a prosecutable case against the principals. Further surveillances�could be and have been attempted; however, if the surveillances are detected�by the principals, their methods of operation would likely be altered and�consequently make the investigation of this matter even more difficult. For�example, on July 26, 1996, FBI Agents conducting airplane surveillance of�PETE PACALO, JR. were spotted by him. As shown herein, PACALO's father�immediately advised LENINE STROLLO of this surveillance. This incident�demonstrates that even airplane surveillance can compromise the�investigation.����90. Consensual monitorings made by cooperating witness Michael Sabella have�been valuable in gathering some of the probable cause utilized to date�(primarily about gambling offenses), but further consensual monitorings alone�would unlikely obtain firsthand evidence against all the participants in all�of the criminal violations conducted by this RICO enterprise for the�following reasons: Sabella is not privy to all the conversations of all of�the participants concerning all of the criminal violations involved with this�enterprise.����91. The Affiant has given consideration to the execution of search warrants�of persons and locations involved in this investigation. As set forth in�previous affidavits, Affiant and other Special Agents of the FBI executed�search warrants at five locations on January 7, 1996. Although gambling�records were seized, the records fail to show the full scope of the�interrelationship of the various gambling establishments controlled by this�enterprise or the identities of those in control to include managers,�financiers, and principals or the additional offenses committed by this�enterprise. Moreover, the bettors' identities were concealed by code numbers;�one of the bookmakers had a shredder and there was evidence inside the�bookmaking office as well as the garbage outside that records had been�destroyed. Intercepted conversations show that since the time of these raids�the principals are taking even greater precautions to conceal and/or destroy�records, as evidenced by the relocation of the numbers bank just after a�warrant was obtained. similarly, the Affiant obtained search warrants for�numbers locations on February 12, June 11, and July 2, 1996. Although the FBI�seized gambling records from each location1 no records were seized which tie�those operations to STROLLO, GARONO or the other leaders of the subject�enterprise. Seizure of additional gambling records are not expected to reveal�sufficient evidence to successfully prosecute all the participants involved�in this RICO enterprise nor reveal all of the predicate offenses. Such a�technique could possibly provide sufficient evidence to prosecute some of the�participants for some of the subject offenses, but this evidence would not�reveal the full scope of the enterprise, the underlying criminal activity or�the various relationships of those involved.����92. The Affiant has employed the technique of issuing subpoenas to obtain�telephone subscriber information and has also reviewed similar records�obtained by other Agents of the FBI. The records obtained have been useful in�revealing the association of the participants. However, these records do not�provide proof of criminal activity. The Affiant knows of no records which�could be obtained by subpoena which would, in and of themselves, establish�the above persons' roles in the above described activities.����93. Use of pen register devices and traps and traces have been useful in�helping to identify possible associations or participants and interaction of�said participants. However, use of pen registers and traps and traces do not�reveal the incriminating content of conversations. Therefore, this technique,�like others set forth above, have been limited in its value toward successful�prosecution.����94. The Affiant has reviewed monitoring logs and evidence obtained from oral�surveillance of meetings occurring within STROLLO's residence. Although those�interceptions are of value, they are not yet sufficient t6 provide the�necessary evidence to prosecute all the members of the enterprise for all�predicate offenses because STROLLO and his associates are careful to conduct�meetings regarding sensitive matters in many different places, often whisper�when discussing highly sensitive matters (even within STROLLO's home) and�generally speak in coded, cryptic language, often referring to unnamed people�and situations discussed in prior conversations (including prior phone�conversations). Because STROLLO and his associates speak in coded, cryptic�language, the violations they are committing and discussing only become�apparent over the course of numerous conversations often over a long peri6d�of time. Accordingly, Affiant believes that continued interception of the�subject telephones is necessary to help piece together the nature of their�criminal conversations and to connect those conversations with conversations�occurring at STROLLO's residence. They are also needed to identify the�persons meeting at STROLLO's residence and at other locations.����95. For the reasons set forth herein, all other investigative avenues have�been tried, have failed or would if tried, have failed to produce the�necessary evidence to prosecute all participants under investigation for all�of the offenses being committed by this enterprise. It is the Affiant's�belief that the only possible avenue of investigation remaining to develop�the necessary evidence to prosecute most or all of the participants for all�of the subject offenses is through continued interception of wire�communications which will occur between the principals and others yet unknown�on the telephones targeted in this affidavit and oral communications within�STROLLO's residence (pursuant to the Court's August 16, 1996 order).�Continued interception over the subject telephones is necessary to fully�establish the roles that LENINE STROLLO, LAWRENCE P. GARONO and the other�named principals play in the affairs of the enterprise, the degree to which�they are attempting to corrupt public officials or obstruct justice and the�full size and scope of the enterprise and the pattern of racketeering�activity.����IV. MINIMIZATION����96. All interceptions will be minimized in accordance with Chapter 119 of�Title 18, United States Code. Interception will be suspended immediately when�it is determined through voice identification, physical surveillance or�otherwise that none of the named interceptees or any of their confederates,�when identified, are participants in a conversation, unless it is determined�during a portion of the conversation already overheard that the conversation�is criminal in nature. Even if one of the named interceptees or their�confederates when identified is a participant in the conversation, monitoring�will be suspended if the conversation is not criminal in nature or is a�privileged conversation, subject to spot monitoring to determine whether the�conversation has returned to a criminal subject matter.����V. PERIOD OF INTERCEPTION����97. It is believed that the facts alleged herein establish that the�principals described herein are engaged in the operation of a RICO enterprise�and that the evidence sought will be intercepted on a continuing basis�following the first receipt of that particular communications that are the�object of this request. Therefore, it is requested that. the Court order that�the interception need not terminate when the communications described herein�are first intercepted, but may continue until the full scope of the�enterprise is developed, including the identities of all participants, their�places and methods of operation and the various activities in which they are�engaged in furtherance of the enterprise, or for a period of thirty (30)�days, whichever comes first.����VI. PRIOR INTERCEPTIONS����98. A check of FBI records was made on August 21, 1996 and to the knowledge�of the Affiant, no previous applications, with the exceptions noted below,�have been made to any judge for authorization to intercept oral, wire, or�electronic communications of any of the principals, facilities, or premises�requested herein.����99. The following is a full and complete statement of the facts concerning�all previous applications known to the Affiant involving any of the same�persons, facilities or places named in this affidavit:����100. On March 30, 1981, United States District Judge Frank J. Battisti�authorized interceptions at the Calla Mar Manor Restaurant, 9983 Market�Street Extension, Beaver Township, Ohio for a period of thirty (30) days. The�order authorized interceptions of conversations of LENINE STROLLO and others�but no conversations were intercepted in which STROLLO could be identified as�a participant.����101. On May 17, 1982, pursuant to a written request by Lee Colwell,�Executive Assistant Director, Federal Bureau of Investigation, the Honorable�D. Lowell Jensen, of the Department of Justice, granted emergency authority�pursuant to Title 18, U.S. Code, Section 2518 (7), for the placement of a�device to intercept and monitor oral conversations within a 1974 Chevrolet�station wagon, light green in color. The order authorized the interceptions�of conversations of LENINE STROLLO, ROBERT POGHEN, and others. ROBERT POGHEN�was intercepted but no conversations were intercepted in which LENINE STROLLO�could be identified as a participant.����102. On May 19, 1982, United States District Judge Frank J. Battisti�authorized continued interception of the above mentioned 1974 Chevrolet�station wagon for a period of twenty-eight (28) days and the interception of�oral communications in the large office of Standard Motors, 900 Andrews�Avenue, Youngstown, Ohio. The order authorized the interceptions of�conversations of LENINE STROLLO, ROBERT POGHEN, and others. ROBERT POGHEN was�intercepted but no conversations were intercepted in which LENINE STROLLO�could be identified as a participant.����103. On October 4, 1985, U.S. District Judge Alvin I. Krenzler authorized�interceptions at the private office of LENINE STROLLO, the manager's office,�and the kitchen all located at the Stardust Motel, 9955 Market Street�Extension, North Lima, Ohio for a period of thirty (30) days. The order�authorized interceptions of conversations of LENINE STROLLO and others.�STROLLO also had a proprietary interest in the Stardust Motel.����104. On May 8, 1992, U.S. District Judge Sam Bell authorized wire and�electronic interceptions of LEO CONNELLY and others for a period of thirty�(30) days.����105. On June 5, 1992, U.S. District Judge Sam Bell authorized wire and�electronic interceptions of LEO CONNELLY and others for a period of thirty�(30) days.����106. On April 16, 1992, U.S. District Judge Ann Aldrich authorized oral�interceptions in various areas of apartments 413 and 104 of the Regency�Towers, 5800 Laurent Drive, Parma, Ohio, for a period of 30 days. The devices�for apartment 413 were not installed. The order authorized interceptions of�conversations of SAM SIRNA and others. SIRNA also had a proprietary interest�in both apartment.����107. On September 23, 1994, U.S. District Judge David D. Dowd authorized�interceptions at PF Bonding and Insurance Agency, 203 Market Avenue South,�Canton, Ohio for a period of thirty (30) days. The order authorized�interceptions of conversations of LENINE STROLLO and others but no�conversations were intercepted in which STROLLO could be identified as a�participant.����108. On January 26, 1995, U.S. District Judge David D. Dowd authorized�interceptions at PF Bonding and Insurance Agency, 203 Market Avenue South,:�Canton, Ohio for a period of thirty (30) days. The order authorized�interceptions of conversations of LENINE STROLLO and others but no�conversations were intercepted in which STROLLO could be identified as a�participant.����109. On November 21, 1995, United States District Judge SAM BELL authorized�interceptions of wire communications of THOMAS J. PURUCKER, SAM S. VONA, JR.,�JOSEPH SERRECCHIO, aka., Joey Cyrak, ROBERT L. HUGHES, aka. Bobby, MICHAEL�SERRECCHIO, aka. Mike Cyrak, for a period of thirty (30) days; and oral�communications of MICHAEL SERRECCHIO, aka. Mike Cyrak, JOSEPH SERRECCHIO,�aka. Joey Cyrak, LAWRENCE P. GARONO, aka. Jeep, Truck, at Mr. A's Eatery, 769�North Garland Avenue, Youngstown, Ohio, for a period of thirty (30) days.����110. On November 30, 1995, U.S. District Judge SAMBELL authorized�interceptions of electronic communications (facsimiles) of SAM S. VONA, JR.,�JOSEPH SERRECCHIO, aka. Joey Cyrak, LAWRENCE P. GARONO, aka. Jeep, Truck, for�a period of thirty (30) days.����111. On December 21, 1995, U.S. District Judge SAM BELL authorized�interceptions of wire communications of JOSEPH SERRECCHIO, aka. Joey Cyrak,�MICHAEL SERRECCHIO, aka. Mike Cyrak, ROBYN SERRECCHIO, SAM S. VONA, JR.,�THOMAS VIGARINO, ROBERT POGHEN, MICHAEL PATRICK, and B6BBY (Last Name�Unknown), for a period of thirty (30) days; oral communications of MICHAEL�SERRECCHIO, aka. Mike Cyrak; JOSEPH SERRECCHIO, aka. Joey Cyrak, LAWRENCE P.�GARONO, aka. Jeep, Truck; ROBERT POGHEN and THOMAS VIGARINO, for a period of�thirty (30) days; and electronic communications of JOSEPH SERRECCHIO, aka.�Joey Cyrak and SAM S. VONA, JR. for a period of 30 days.����- 112. On January 19, 1996, U.S. District Judge Leslie Brooks Wells�authorized interceptions of wire communications of JOSEPH SERRECCHIO, aka�Joseph Cyrak, MICHAEL SERRECCHIO, aka Mike Cyrak, SAM S. VONA, JR., ROBERT�POGHEN, MICHAEL PATRICK, LAWRENCE P. GARONO, aka Jeep, Truck, LENINE STROLLO, aka Lenny, and DANTE STROLLO, aka Danny for a period of 30 days; and oral�communications of MICHAEL SERRECCHIO, aka Mike Cyrak, JOSEPH SERRECCHIO, aka�Joey Cyrak, LAWRENCE P. GARONO, aka Jeep, Truck, ROBERT POGHEN, and SAM S.�VONA, JR. for a period of 30 days.����113. On February 15, 1996, U.S. District Judge Sam Bell authorized�continued interceptions of LAWRENCE P. GARONO, aka. Jeep, Truck; LENINE�STROLLO, aka. Lenny; DANTE STROLLO, aka. Danny; JOSEPH SERRECCHIO, aka. Joey�Cyrak; MICHAEL SERRECCHIO, aka. Mike Cyrak; SAM S. VONA, JR.; and MICHAEL�PATRICK for a period of 30 days.����114 . On March 4, 1996, U.S. District Judge Sam Bell authorized wire�interceptions of LAWRENCE P. GARONO, aka. Jeep, Truck; LENINE STROLLO, aka.�Lenny; DANTE STR6LLO, aka. Danny; ROBERT POGHEN, aka. Bobby; BERNARD�ALTSHULER, aka. Bernie the Jew; and RAYMOND HERTZ for a period of 30 days.����115. On March 14, 1996, United States District Judge Sam Bell authorized�continued interception of wire communications of LAWRENCE P. GARONO, aka.,�Jeep, Truck, LENINE STROLLO, aka., Lenny, DANTE STROLLO, aka., Danny, Joseph�Serrecchio, aka., Joey Cyrak, Michael Serrecchio, aka., Mike Cyrak, Sam S.�Vona, Jr., and Michael Patrick for a period of thirty (30) days. ����116. On April 2, 1996, United States District Judge Sam Bell authorized�continued interception of wire communications of LENINE STROLLO, aka., Lenny;�Dante Strollo, aka., Danny; LAWRENCE P. GARONO, aka., Jeep, Truck; ROBERT�POGHEN, aka., Bobby; Bernard Altshuler aka., Bernie the Jew; Raymond Hertz;�George Malizia; John (LNU); Neil (LNU); ANTOINETTE RUSSO, aka., Toni; Dominic�Strollo, aka., Dom; CHARLES ONESTI; Stewart Mandel for a period of thirty (30) days.����117. On April 12, 1996, United States District Judge David D. Dowd�authorized wire interceptions of LAWRENCE P. GARONO, aka., Jeep, Truck,�LENINE STROLLO, aka., Lenny, BERNARD ALTSHULER, aka., Bernie the Jew, Charles�Xenakis, ROBERT MOOSALLY, ROBERT POGHEN, aka., Bobby, CHARLES ONESTI, and�John Chicase for a period of thirty (30) days.����118. On May 1, 1996, United States District Judge Sam Bell authorized�continued interception of wire communications of LENINE STROLLO, aka., Lenny,�Dante Strollo, aka., Danny, Dominic Strollo, aka., Dom, LAWRENCE P. GARONO,�aka., Jeep, Truck, ROBERT POGHEN, aka., Bobby, BERNARD ALTSHULER, aka.,�Bernie the Jew, Raymond Hertz, George Malizia, John ('MU), CHARLES ONESTI,�George Alexander, ROBERT MOOSALLY, Stewart Mandel and ANTOINETTE RUSSO for a�period of 30 days.����119. On May 10, 1996, United States District Judge Sam Bell authorized oral�interceptions of LENINE STROLLO, aka., Lenny, DANTE STROLLO, aka., Danny,�DOMINIC STROLLO, aka., Dom, LAWRENCE P. GARONO, aka., Jeep, Truck, ROBERT�POGHEN, aka., Bobby, BERNARD ALTSHULER, aka., Bernie the Jew, RAYMOND HERTZ,�GEORGE MALIZIA, CHARLES ONESTI, aka., Chuck, GEORGE ALEXANDER and ROBERT�MOOSALLY for a period of thirty days.����120. On May 10, 1996, United States District Judge Sam Bell authorized�continued interception of wire communications of LAWRENCE P. GARONO, aka.,�Jeep, Truck, LENINE STROLLO, aka., Lenny, BERNARD ALTSHULER; aka., Bernie the�Jew, Charles Xenakis, ROBERT MOOSALLY, ROBERT POGHEN, aka., Bobby, CHARLES�ONESTI, John Chicase, Patrick Armstrong and B.I. (believed to be Bobby�Ingram) for a period of thirty days.����121. On May 31, 1996, United States District Judge Sam Bell authorized continued interception of wire communications of LENINE STROLLO, aka., Lenny, DANTE STROLLO, aka., Danny, DOMINIC STROLLO, aka., Dom, LAWRENCE P. GARONO, aka., Jeep, Truck, ROBERT POGHEN, aka., Bobby, BERNARD ALTSHULER, aka., Bernie the Jew, RAYMOND HERTZ, GEORGE MALIZIA, John (LNU), CHARLES ONESTI, GEORGE ALEXANDER, ROBERT MOOSALLY, STEWART MANDEL, ANTOINETTE RUSSO and Thomas Onesti.����122. On June 7, 1996, United States District Judge Sam Bell authorized�continued interception of wire communications of LAWRENCE P. GARONO, aka.,�Jeep, Truck, LENINE STROLLO, aka.,Lenny, CHARLES XENAKIS, ROBERT MOOSALLY,�ROBERT POGHEN, aka., Bobby, CHARLES ONESTI, JOHN CHICASE, PATRICK ARMSTRONG and B.I. (believed to be BOBBY INGRAM).����123. On June 17, 1996, United States District Judge Sam Bell authorized�continued interception of oral communications of LENINE STROLLO, aka., Lenny,�DANTE STROLLO, aka., Danny, DOMINIC STROLLO, aka., Dom, LAWRENCE P. GARONO,�aka., Jeep, Truck, ROBERT POGHEN, aka., Bobby, BERNARD ALTSHULER, aka.,�Bernie the Jew, RAYMOND HERTZ, GEORGE MALIZIA, CHARLES ONESTI, aka., Chuck,�GEORGE ALEXANDER, ROBERT MOOSALLY and ANTOINETTE RUSSO.����124. On June 28, 1996 U.S. District Judge Sam Bell authorized continued�interception of wire communications of LENINE STROLLO, aka.1 Lenny, DANTE�STROLLO, aka., Danny, DOMINIC STROLLO, aka., Dom, LAWRENCE P. GARONO, aka.,�Jeep, Truck, ROBERT POGHEN, aka., Bobby, BERNARD ALTSHULER, aka., Bernie the�Jew, RAYMOND HERTZ, GEORGE MALIZIA, JOHN (LNU), CHARLES ONESTI, GEORGE�ALEXANDER, ROBERT MOOSALLY, STEWART MANDEL, ANTOINETTE RUSSO, THOMAS ONESTI, CHARLES XENAKIS, JOHN CHICASE, PATRICK ARMSTRONG, B.I. (believed to be BOBBY INGRAM), and SAM SIRNA.����125. On July 17, 1996, U.S. District Judge Sam Bell authorized continued�oral interceptions of LENINE STROLLO, aka., Lenny, DANTE STROLLO, aka.,�Danny, DOMINIC STROLLO, aka., Dom, LAWRENCE P. GARONO, aka., Jeep, Truck,�ROBERT POGHEN, aka., Bobby, BERNART ALTSHULER, aka., Bernie the Jew, RAYMOND�HERTZ, GEORGE MALIZIA, CHARLES ONESTI, aka., Chuck, GEORGE ALEXANDER, ROBERT MOOSALLY, ANTOINETTE RUSSO, MICHAEL ROMEO, aka., Cumbari Mike, LEO CONNELLY, PAUL CONNELLY, and PAUL HOLOVATICK, aka., Pinto.����126. On July 26, 1996, U.S. District Judge Sam Bell authorized continued�wire interceptions of LENINE STROLLO, aka., Lenny; DANTE STROLLO, aka.,�Danny; DOMINIC STROLLO, aka., Dom; LAWRENCE P. GARONO, aka., Jeep, Truck;�ROBERT POGHEN, aka., Bobby; BERNARD ALTSHULER, aka., Bernie the Jew; RAYMOND�HERTZ; GEORGE MALIZIA; JOHN (LNU); CHARLES ONESTI; GEORGE ALEXANDER; ROBERT MOOSALLY; STEWART MANDEL; ANTOINETTE RUSSO; THOMAS ONESTI; LEO CONNELLY; MICHAEL ROMEO, aka., Cumbari Mike; MARY LOU ALTSHULER; PATRICK ARMSTRONG, CHARLES XENAKIS, JOHN CHICASE, B.I. (believed to be BOBBY INGRAM) and SAM SIRNA. ����127. On August 6, 1996, U.S. District Judge Sam Bell authorized wire�interceptions of LAWRENCE P. GARONO, aka., Jeep, Truck; LENINE STROLLO, aka.,�Lenny; CHARLES XENAKIS; ROBERT POGHEN, aka., Bobby, CHARLES ONESTI, JOHN�CHICASE, PATRICK ARMSTRONG, B.I. (believed to be BOBBY INGRAM), SAM SIRNA,�BERNARD ALSTHULER, aka., Bernie the Jew; and RAYMOND HERTZ.����128. On August 16, 1996, U.S. District Judge Sam Bell authorized continued�oral interceptions of LENINE STROLLO, aka., Lenny, DANTE STROLLO, aka.,�Danny, DOMINIC STROLLO, aka., Dom, LAWRENCE P. GARONO, aka., Jeep, Truck,�ROBERT POGHEN, aka., Bobby, BERNARD ALTSHULER, aka., Bernie the Jew, RAYMOND�HERTZ, GEORGE MALIZIA, CHARLES ONESTI, aka., Chuck, GEORGE ALEXANDER, WILLIAM FERGUS, ROBERTMOOSALLY, ANTOINETTE RUSSO, MICHAEL ROMEO, aka., Cumbari Mike, LEO CONNELLY, PAUL HOLOVATICK, aka., Pinto, and PETE PACALO.����ROBERT G. KRONER, JR.�Special Agent�Federal Bureau of Investigation����Subscribed and sworn to before me this 23rd day of August, 1996.���Sam Bell�U.S. District Judge��___________________________________________
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�Area places, people searched �����Places searched by FBI agents between January 1995 and January 1997: ��* St. Anthony Social Hall, 108 Lowellville Road, Struthers. �* 110 Evans Ave., Youngstown. �* 414 Creed St., Struthers. �* 7460 Huntington, Apt. 6, Boardman. �* 1039 Plymouth, Youngstown. �* 800 Park Blvd., East Liverpool. �* 616 Lincoln Ave., Niles. �* 2912 Wilson Ave., Campbell. �* Mr. A's Eatery, 769 N. Garland Ave., Youngstown (searched twice). �* Offices of attorney Stephen Garea, Suite 422, City Centre One, 100�Federal Plaza East, Youngstown. �* Home of Lenny Strollo, 7000 Leffingwell Road, Canfield. �* Ace Fireworks, 178 Underridge Road, Conneaut. �* Home of Dominic Strollo, 489 Millbrook, Canfield. �* Room 169 of the Ramada Inn, 4255 Belmont Ave., Liberty. �* Room 171 of the Ramada Inn, 4255 Belmont Ave., Liberty, a room that was�held by Dominic Strollo. �* Garano Landscaping, 340 School St., Hubbard.���Agents also got federal warrants to stop and search people. They include: �Michael Serrecchio (searched twice). �Joseph Serrecchio (searched twice). �Sam S. Vona Jr. �Vince Giampetro. �Michael Murphy. �Robert L. Hughes, also known as Bobby. �Dr. Orland Castro, aka Doc. ���
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